
 

1 
 

     P&RC: 9.18.14 - Item IV-a. Approved 

 

Summary Minutes   

(Final Draft 9.11.14) 

City of Alexandria, Virginia 

PARK AND RECREATION COMMISSION   

 

Regular Meeting 

Thursday, July 17, 2014, 7:00 p.m. 

Charles Houston Center 

901 Wythe Street 

Alexandria, VA 22314 

 

P&RC Members Present:  Jennifer Atkins, Co-Chair, Judith Coleman, Co-Chair; Gina Baum, 

Stephen Beggs, Rich Brune, Catherine Poulin, Brian McPherson, Emma Schutzius. 

Absent:  William Cromley, Ripley Forbes, Alexis Browand. 

 

RPCA Staff Present:  James Spengler, Director;  Dinesh Tiwari, Deputy Director, Park 

Operations; Joseph Petrella, Division Chief, Recreation Services; Cheryl Lawrence, Director 

Special Events; Ron Kagawa, Division Chief, Park Planning, Design and Capital Projects; David 

Ghezzi, Architect,  Laura Durham, Open Space Coordinator; Robin DeShields, Executive 

Assistant.   

Absent: William Chesley, Deputy Director, Recreation Services; Jack Browand, Division Chief, 

Marketing, Special Events, Waterfront Operations.   

 

Guests: Susan Eddy, Deputy Director, Department of Planning and Zoning, Long-range and 

Strategic Planning; Jeanne Gardner, Ailey Ellis, Zachery Ellis.    

 

I. Call to Order by Jennifer Akins and Judith Coleman, Co-Chairs: Atkins called the 

meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 

 

II. Presentations: 

a.    Eisenhower West Small Area Plan (SAP): Note: Full presentation is posted to: 

http://alexandriava.gov/uploadedFiles/recreation/EisenhowerWestPRC17July14.p

df 

 Susan Eddy, Deputy Director Planning and Zoning, briefly reviewed the 

Eisenhower West Small Area Plan (SAP) and distributed three handouts viewable 

online, 1. Eisenhower West SAP – Open Space and Hydrology Map, June 2014; 

2. Eisenhower West SAP Community Meeting #1 information, June 16, 2014, and 

3. List of 2014 Key Meeting Dates. Eddy said the boundary of the Eisenhower 

West study area encompasses the far southwest corner of the City, near Pickett St. 

and the Cameron Station area. She said that the study includes some City parks, 



 

2 
 

but not Cameron Run Regional Park.  Eddy said when the City Council gave 

direction for an updated Eisenhower West Plan the items they asked staff to look 

at are, the Metro station, and industrial development in the area. Pickett Street's 

redevelopment was also a large part of the discussion.  Eddy said the goal is to 

create a cohesive community.  In December 2013, City Council established a 12- 

member Steering Committee, including representatives from the Planning 

Commission, Transportation Commission, Environmental Policy Commission, 

Park and Recreation Commission (Judy Coleman), and business, community and 

landowner representatives.  The next Community Meeting (Visioning Session) is 

scheduled for July 28
th

, 7:00 p.m. at the Charles Beatley Library.  Eddy said 

major issues discussed at the first Community Meeting were: the community 

values parks and desires for greater connectivity for walking and biking.  She said 

two online surveys were completed to date to gather input, although the samples 

were not statistically accurate.   On July 28
th

, staff and the consultants will bring 

forward options for citizen input.  The plan is to develop a framework for land 

use, transportation, parks and other items that can be presented to the Planning 

Commission and City Council in March 2015, and then take the plan back to the 

community, with the goal of finalizing the plan by fall 2015.   

 

Commissioner questions and comments: 

Coleman asked about the planned multi-modal bridge and transportation study.  

Eddy said the map shows the plan boundary in 1992 - all blue areas were the 

Landmark/Van Dorn SAP.  A few years ago the City adopted the Landmark /Van 

Dorn Corridor SAP (see yellow line on the map), it included a recommendation to 

build a new multi-modal bridge to connect Eisenhower Ave. to Pickett St., east of 

Van Dorn St. As part of the Eisenhower West SAP the location of the proposed 

bridge will be discussed further, along with potential users.  A consultant was 

hired to complete a Transportation Study.  Eddy said there is also a financial 

component tied into the plan. In response to Atkins, Eddy said she is unsure if the 

proposed bridge will go over or through Boothe Park.  

McPherson said he feels it is contradictory that the survey showed the community 

wants 62% Parks and Open Space, but the location of the bridge could take away 

land from Boothe Park.  He asked what "future transit way" means.  

Eddy said the City has identified three transit corridors (A-Route 1, B-Duke St. 

area, and C-West End, Beauregard area), that will be used for bus rapid transit 

and explained each.  She said the City is undertaking an Environmental Impact 

Study (EIS), to help determine routes. Eddy said the study is looking at if the 

multi-modal bridge satisfies Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) 

requirements. 

 



 

3 
 

Coleman asked if there is an easement in Boothe Park.  Eddy said yes. Durham 

said the easement was done when the Cameron Station Coordinated Development 

District (CDD) was approved and it runs through the far west section of the park.  

 

Baum said she is glad the survey showed that parks and open space are a priority.  

 

Atkins asked what is the ultimate goal for the Eisenhower West SAP.  She said 

given the importance of City parks if a developer submits a project to the City and 

is looking to be up-zoned, the SAP should require developers to include proffers 

for parks, open space or other amenities, if desired by the community. Eddy said 

the first thing staff is supposed to look at is consistency with the SAP in terms of 

road and CIP improvements.  She said regarding proffers for parks, open space or 

other amenities, this can be looked at in conjunction with the community.  For 

example: In the Braddock Rd. Area Metro Plan there are designated funds of 

money and City Council adopted a plan with dollar amounts. Most of the money 

goes to streetscapes and parks. 

 

Update Northern Virginia Regional Park Authority (NVRPA): James 

Spengler, Director, gave update – See Staff Memorandum dated June 13, 2014 to 

City Manager Young (copy attached). NVRPA has requested an extension of its 

lease of the Cameron Run Regional Park, 4001 Eisenhower Ave. for an additional 

40 years. City staff met with NVRPA to discuss future lease options.   

 

The Commission discussed NVRPA's request for a lease extension. Several 

concerns were raised, such as the City’s need for additional land to build future 

recreation facilities on, and the need for year-round facilities.  Baum referenced 

an unsuccessful proposal brought to the City in July 2013 by the St. James Group, 

a private entity to build a multi-sports and entertainment complex on Eisenhower 

Avenue near Hensley Park. Baum said the City needs land for the community. 

Atkins said when NVRPA came before to City the idea was that you enter 

negotiations and figure out what needs to be done. The idea for a year-round 

facility becomes part of the discussion, and the City can require certain amenities, 

and not just agree to a largely seasonal waterpark (3-mos. of the year). Coleman 

pointed out that the St. James Group was a private not public entity. 

Atkins said the NVRPA lease could be renewed with expanded recreation 

opportunities such as fields, swim lessons, or an ice rink. McPherson said 

NVRPA desires to renew its lease early raises important questions, such as what 

will happen if the City says no, or if the City renews what will be the benefit to 

the City.  He said the City does not have the funds to maintain Cameron Run 

Park.  He said he disagrees with extending the lease for another 40 years, and said 

the land is more valuable now than when the lease was originally done. Schutius 

asked if the park is expected to last for another 40 years in its current state. 



 

4 
 

Durham said a survey will go out in August to City residents regarding the use of 

regional parks to help establish priorities for parks, recreation and cultural arts 

facilities. 

Atkins suggested the Commission hold a public hearing in November. 

Baum said the Commission should convey to City Council its concerns on the use 

of the land over the next 40 years because it may be needed by the City for 

recreational uses. Coleman said the Commission should not hold a public hearing 

before all relevant information has been obtained.  

 

b.    Oakville Triangle Plan: Laura Durham, Open Space Coordinator provided a 

brief update of the Plan and distributed a map of the Oakville Triangle/Route I 

Plan Study Area and provided a brief update – See Staff Report. The Department 

of Planning & Zoning will update the P&RC in September. Durham said this will 

be a Master Plan Amendment. The owners would like to redevelop their property 

and have asked for rezoning.   The next Advisory Group meeting (#5) is 

scheduled for August 18, 2014.  Mt. Jefferson Park is in the plan area and the 

community wants to protect it, make enhancements and add natural elements.  

Durham encouraged the Park Commission to become involved, she said draft 

plans from the developer will be available in September.  The Planning 

Commission may hold a work session in October or November.  In response to 

McPherson, Durham said there is one property owner for the Oakville Triangle 

portion of the study area, and the developer is Stonebridge. Durham said heights 

are not yet defined. The community prefers to keep the greatest height on Route 1, 

and not the neighborhood.  

 

    c.   Zackary Ellis, Boy Scout Troop No. 301: Ellis attends St. Mary’s Catholic School. 

He said his troop adopted a block, and picks up trash and he is here to observe 

tonight’s Commission meeting. Atkins welcomed Zackary and thanked him for his 

work and interest in the community. Schutius shared that she is a long time Girl Scout. 

 

III. Items for Action: 

Approval of Summary Minutes: May 15, 2014 and June 19, 2014: 

 May 15, 2014- deferred from June meeting.  Action:  Brune moved to approve the 

May minutes, Baum seconded. All were in favor. 

 June 19, 2014 - Atkins said she read the public hearing testimony.  Action: Poulin 

moved to approve the minutes, Brune seconded. All were in favor. 

 

IV. Items for Information and discussion: See agenda there were no separate items for 

discussion. 

 



 

5 
 

V. Division Updates: To view full staff reports please go to: 

http://www.alexandriava.gov/uploadedFiles/recreation/info/PRCCOMBINEDPACK

AGEJULY172014.pdf 

A. Recreation Programs and Service Update - William Chesley, Deputy Director - 

See Staff  Report.  In response to a question from Atkins, Chesley reported that 

1,333 children were enrolled in the summer camps program.  He said for the past 

few years, after school, and summer program enrollment at recreation centers has 

increased at several west end locations including William Ramsay. This summer 

at Douglas MacArthur School we lost a few students due to the relocation of the 

MacArthur summer program to Maury due to school renovation. Chesley said that 

no children have been turned away from the program. Baum asked if staff will be 

able to use Jefferson Houston School this year. Chesley said yes, and that space 

has been committed for RPCA programming for the 2014-2015 school year. 

 

B. Park Operations Report - Dinesh Tiwari, Deputy Director - See Staff Report.   

 

C. Public Relations, Special Events and Waterfront Operations – Cheryl 

Lawrence, Director, Office of Special Events – See Staff Report. Atkins said that 

the fireworks display at the City’s Annual Birthday Celebration on July 13
th

 was 

fantastic, and that she has received many positive comments from people about 

interactions with park staff.  McPherson asked if staff has thought about placing 

police officers at the street intersections to help keep traffic flowing. Lawrence 

said attendance at the event was heavy, and that there were many avenues 

available to help people exit the park safely after the program ended. She said 

there was some police presence at the event assisting people exiting the 

park. Lawrence said the budget for the event was about $25,000 to $26,000.  

 

D. Park Planning, Design & Capital Development Reports – Ron Kagawa, 

Division Chief and Team – See Staff Reports: Eisenhower West Small Area 

Planning Process Update, Oakville Triangle/Route 1 Corridor Planning Process Update, 

Capital Projects Update, Capital Facilities Maintenance Projects Update.   

 Warwick Pool Update- 3301 Landover Street:  David Ghezzi, Architect, 

RPCA.  Ghezzi referenced reports issued on May 21, 2014 to Director James 

Spengler on the pool’s condition. A comprehensive facility evaluation was 

performed by the Department of General Services (DGS), and City’s 

engineering consultants Kimley-Horn and Associates. A walkthrough 

assessment of existing conditions was conducted on May 15, 2014.  DGS 

ranked and identified potential risks to normal and safe operating conditions 

for a four year span from 2016 to 2020. Risks were prioritized on a three tier 

system.  A brief tally (see handout) shows that:  Tier 1 with 19 items are in 

urgent need of repair, estimated cost $94,000 to $155,000;   Tier 2 with 16 

items, represent a probably risk, estimated cost $648,000 to $910,000; Tier 3 

http://www.alexandriava.gov/uploadedFiles/recreation/info/PRCCOMBINEDPACKAGEJULY172014.pdf
http://www.alexandriava.gov/uploadedFiles/recreation/info/PRCCOMBINEDPACKAGEJULY172014.pdf


 

6 
 

with 7 items, represent some risk, estimated cost $709,000 to 922,000. The 

total cost of the three Tiers is estimated cost of $1.5 to 2.0 million dollars. An 

Americans with Disabilities (ADA) review was incorporated into the 

assessment. The City’s Human Rights Office recommended items found to be 

in non-compliance with ADA will require correction prior to the FY16 season. 

In addition to continuing monitoring of the facility’s physical condition, City 

staff has tracked attendance records at Warwick Pool. William Chesley, 

Deputy Director,  RPCA reported that in 2012, overall attendance at the pool 

was 3128 persons; in 2013 was 2078 persons; and in 2014 was 3835 persons. 

Chesley reported a 28% increase from 2013, not including rental and campers. 

Commissioner Baum asked what is the maximum capacity at one time at the 

pool Chesley said the maximum capacity is approximately 225 persons at any 

single time.  City Staff, Laura Durham said there is an ongoing survey and 

that Recreation Services staff has been sampling attendance at all three 

outdoor City pools.  The survey shows, at Warwick Pool, 90% of participants 

are coming from the West Potomac area. Over the next few weeks, the survey 

will be refined to see if children in Arlandria and Del Ray are using the pool. 

Commissioner Atkins said this will be discussed further in September; she 

thanked City staff for the update. She said it is important for City Council to 

be aware that this is coming to them for their review. 

 

 Dominion Virginia Power Request for Transmission Line: Kagawa gave 

update- See Staff Report.  Dominion Virginia Power wants to install a 230 

KVA between Dominion Virginia Power Four Mile Run Substation in 

Arlington and the North Potomac Yard and adjacent to the substation facility 

off of Slaters Lane in Alexandria. On June 24, 2014 a resolution was passed 

by City Council that established a Task Force to study this issue. The group 

will include a member from the P&RC and the Four Mile Run Joint Task 

Force.  Co-Chair Atkins said support was requested from the P&RC Co-

Chairs, and asked who would be interested in serving on this group. 

Commissioner Poulin expressed interested.  Action: McPherson moved to 

appoint Catherine Poulin as the representative for the P&RC. Atkins seconded 

the motion. The motion passed unanimously.   

 

VI. Reports from Commissioners (verbal updates): 

A. Waterfront Commission - Gina Baum:  Baum said the Waterfront Commission had 

been briefed the previous Tuesday by the contract purchaser of Robinson Terminal 

North, City Interests. The project team's architect and landscape architect had 

discussed their current design concepts for the site at 500 and 501 N. Union Street. 

She said the preliminary plans had been submitted to Planning and Zoning for 

comment and the project team is consulting with the BAR on the designs, but the 

BAR does not have formal jurisdiction over the site. Baum distributed copies of two 



 

7 
 

briefings on 500 and 501 Union St. provided to the Waterfront Commission on 

07.15.2014. For more information go online to:  

http://www.alexandriava.gov/uploadedFiles/recreation/info/RTN1WC15July2014.pdf 

http://www.alexandriava.gov/uploadedFiles/recreation/info/RTN2WC15July2014.pdf  

She provided an overview of the design concept for the residential units, hotel, 

commercial space and open space included in the briefing and posted to the City 

website. Kagawa said to remember this is a Concept Plan #2 and there will be a 

Concept Plan #3.  Baum asked if they should come to the Park and Recreation 

Commission. Kagawa said yes.   Marina Subcommittee.  Marina slip leaseholders 

are actively lobbying to ensure there are leasing opportunities along the City 

waterfront for recreational boat users. Poulin asked if the City charges leaseholders a 

fee. Baum said yes, but that the costs are not in line with RPCA’s Cost Recovery and 

Resource Allocation Policy.   

 

B. Youth Sports Committee - Brian McPherson – no update. 

 

C. Eisenhower West - Judith Coleman – no update. 

 

D. Aquatics Update - Jennifer Atkins – no update. This was discussed at last meeting. 

 

E. Four Mile Run - Ripley Forbes (absent) – no update. 

 

F. Ft. Ward Park - Ripley Forbes (absent).  Durham said the Ft. Ward Management 

Plan will be on agenda in September. A joint meeting with the Ft. Ward Committee, 

the Environmental Policy, Historic Alexandria Resources, and the Park and 

Recreation Commissions will be held in September.  

 

G. Braddock Plan Park- no update. 

 

H. Patrick Henry School Update – McPherson said the project is proceeding on 

schedule. 

 

I. Jefferson Houston School - William Cromley (absent). Kagawa said the existing 

school will be torn down soon. 

 

J. Open Space - Jennifer Atkins – no update.  

 

K. Freedmen’s Cemetery- no update. 

 

L. ACPS & Capital Improvements-no update. 

 

M. ACPS School Projects- no update. 

 

N. Bicycle/Pedestrian Master Plan Advisory Group– no update. 

 

VII. Public Comments: none 

http://www.alexandriava.gov/uploadedFiles/recreation/info/RTN1WC15July2014.pdf
http://www.alexandriava.gov/uploadedFiles/recreation/info/RTN2WC15July2014.pdf


 

8 
 

VIII. Agenda items for September 18, 2014 Meeting:  Co-Chair Coleman suggested holding 

a future meeting in the City’s West End.  Agenda item September - Ft. Ward 

Management Plan. 

 

IX. Adjournment: The meeting adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 

 

 

 

 
























